

1 CITY OF LITTLETON, COLORADO

2
3 ORDINANCE NO. 12

4
5 Series of 2019

6
7
8 INTRODUCED BY COUNCILMEMBERS: VALDES & SCHLACHTER

9
10 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LITTLETON,
11 COLORADO, REVISING THE LITTLETON STORM
12 DRAINAGE ORDINANCE, TITLE 7 CHAPTER 7 OF THE
13 MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ASSOCIATED CROSS
14 REFERENCES IN TITLE 7, CHAPTER 8

15
16 WHEREAS, the City of Littleton is permitted to discharge stormwater to the
17 Waters of the State via the general permit "Certification to Discharge Under CDPS General
18 Permit COR0900000 Stormwater Discharges Associated with Municipal Separate Storm Sewer
19 Systems (MS4);

20
21 WHEREAS, the current permit term requires implementation of certain language
22 in regulatory mechanisms to control pollutants to Waters of the State by July 1, 2019;

23
24 WHEREAS, the Littleton Storm Drainage Ordinance, Municipal Code Title 7,
25 Chapter 7, is a portion of said regulatory mechanisms;

26
27 WHEREAS, the City of Littleton must adopt the required changes to language in
28 the Storm Drainage Ordinance to remain in compliance with the permit.

29
30 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
31 THE CITY OF LITTLETON, COLORADO, THAT:

32
33 Section 1: Title 7, Chapter 7 is amended to read as follows:

34
35 Chapter 7
36 LITTLETON STORM DRAINAGE ORDINANCE

37 7-7-1: SHORT TITLE:

38 7-7-2: DEFINITIONS:

39 7-7-3: ABBREVIATIONS:

40 7-7-4: PURPOSE, OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE:

41 7-7-5: APPLICABILITY:

42 ~~7-7-6: LANDS EXEMPTED FROM PLATTING:~~

43 7-7-6: STANDARDS AND CRITERIA:

44 ~~7-7-7: SITE RUNOFF RATE:~~

45 7-7-7: AUTHORITY OF THE DIRECTOR:

~~7-7-8: SEWERS, FACILITIES INSTALLED, LAND GRADED:~~

~~7-7-8: ILLICIT DISCHARGES:~~

~~7-7-9: COMPLIANCE REQUIRED; ISSUANCE OF PERMIT, CERTIFICATE:~~

~~7-7-10: CHANGE, MOVING OF FACILITY; APPROVAL REQUIRED:~~

~~7-7-10: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES;~~

MODIFICATION OF FACILITIES:

~~7-7-11: DRAINAGE FACILITY REPORT:~~

7-7-11: INSPECTIONS; RIGHT OF ENTRY:

~~7-7-12: REMEDIES:~~

7-7-12: VIOLATIONS; ENFORCEMENT:

~~7-7-13: ILLICIT DISCHARGES:~~

7-7-13: APPEALS:

7-7-14: SEVERABILITY:

7-7-1: SHORT TITLE:

This chapter shall be known and be cited as the *LITTLETON STORM DRAINAGE ORDINANCE*. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

7-7-2: DEFINITIONS:

TERMS NOT OTHERWISE DEFINED HEREIN SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 1-3-2, 7-5-2 OR 7-5-25 OF THIS CODE.

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES: SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES, PROHIBITIONS OF PRACTICES, MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES, AND OTHER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES TO PREVENT OR REDUCE THE POLLUTION OF WATERS OF THE STATE. THIS INCLUDES TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS, OPERATING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES TO CONTROL SITE RUNOFF, SPILLAGE OR LEAKS, SLUDGE OR WASTE DISPOSAL OR DRAINAGE FROM RAW MATERIAL STORAGE. USED INTERCHANGEABLE WITH THE TERM CONTROL MEASURE, AND CAN INCLUDE OTHER METHODS SUCH AS THE INSTALLATION, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURAL CONTROLS AND TREATMENT DEVICES.

CITY: THE CITY OF LITTLETON, COLORADO.

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY: REFERS TO GROUND SURFACE DISTURBING AND ASSOCIATED ACTIVITIES (LAND DISTURBANCE), WHICH INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, CLEARING, GRADING, EXCAVATION, DEMOLITION, INSTALLATION OF NEW ROADS OR IMPROVED ROADS, STAGING AREAS, STOCKPILING OF MATERIALS AND BORROW AREAS. CONSTRUCTION DOES NOT INCLUDE ROUTINE MAINTENANCE TO MAINTAIN ORIGINAL LINE AND GRADE, HYDRAULIC CAPACITY OR ORIGINAL PURPOSE OF THE FACILITY. ACTIVITIES TO CONDUCT

1 REPAIRS THAT ARE NOT PART OF REGULAR MAINTENANCE OR FOR
2 REPLACEMENT ARE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND ARE NOT ROUTINE
3 MAINTENANCE. REPAVING ACTIVITIES WHERE UNDERLYING AND/OR
4 SURROUNDING SOIL IS CLEARED, GRADED, OR EXCAVATED AS PART OF THE
5 REPAVING OPERATION ARE CONSIDERED CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES UNLESS
6 THEY ARE AN EXCLUDED SITE AS DEFINED BY WQCD. CONSTRUCTION
7 ACTIVITY IS FROM INITIAL GROUND BREAKING TO FINAL STABILIZATION
8 REGARDLESS OF OWNERSHIP OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

9
10 CONTROL MEASURE: ANY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE OR OTHER METHOD
11 USED TO PREVENT OR REDUCE THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS TO WATERS OF
12 THE STATE. CONTROL MEASURES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO BEST
13 MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. CONTROL MEASURES CAN INCLUDE OTHER
14 METHODS SUCH AS THE INSTALLATION OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF
15 STRUCTURE CONTROLS AND TREATMENT DEVICES.

16
17 DEVELOPMENT: LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES; STRUCTURAL DEVELOPMENT,
18 INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION OR INSTALLATION OF A BUILDING OR STRUCTURE,
19 CREATION OF IMPERVIOUS SURFACES, AND LAND SUBDIVISION FOR A SITE
20 THAT DOES NOT MEET THE DEFINITION OF REDEVELOPMENT.

21
22 DIRECTOR: THE CITY'S DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, OR
23 AN AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE.

24
25 DISCHARGE: THE INTRODUCTION OR ADDITION OF A POLLUTANT INTO STATE
26 WATERS. ALTERNATIVELY, A UNIT OF MEASUREMENT OF FLOW (VOLUME PER
27 SEGMENT OF TIME).

28
29 FINAL STABILIZATION: WHEN ALL GROUND SURFACE DISTURBING ACTIVITIES
30 AT THE SITE HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AND UNIFORM VEGETATIVE COVER HAS
31 BEEN ESTABLISHED WITH AN INDIVIDUAL PLANT DENSITY OF AT LEAST 70
32 PERCENT OF PRE-DISTURBANCE LEVELS, OR EQUIVALENT PERMANENT,
33 PHYSICAL EROSION REDUCTION METHODS HAVE BEEN EMPLOYED.

34
35 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL: ANY SUBSTANCE, WATER, OR COMBINATION THEREOF,
36 WHICH BECAUSE OF ITS QUANTITY, CONCENTRATION, OR PHYSICAL, CHEMICAL,
37 OR INFECTIOUS CHARACTERISTICS, MAY CAUSE, OR SIGNIFICANTLY
38 CONTRIBUTE TO, A SUBSTANTIAL PRESENT OR POTENTIAL HUMAN HAZARD TO
39 HUMAN HEALTH, SAFETY, PROPERTY, OR THE ENVIRONMENT WHEN
40 IMPROPERLY TREATED, STORED, TRANSPORTED, DISPOSED OF, OR OTHERWISE
41 MANAGED. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE CONSIDERED A CATEGORY OF ILLICIT
42 DISCHARGE.

1 ILLICIT: ILLEGAL

2
3 ILLICIT CONNECTION: ANY DRAIN OR CONVEYANCE, WHETHER ON THE
4 SURFACE OR SUBSURFACE, WHICH ALLOWS AN ILLICIT DISCHARGE TO ENTER
5 THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

6
7 ILLICIT DISCHARGE: ANY DISCHARGE TO A STORM DRAINAGE FACILITY THAT IS
8 NOT COMPOSED ENTIRELY OF STORMWATER EXCEPT DISCHARGES
9 SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZED BY A CDPS OR NPDES PERMIT AND DISCHARGES
10 RESULTING FROM EMERGENCY FIREFIGHTING ACTIVITIES.

11
12 IMPERVIOUS AREA OR IMPERVIOUS SURFACE: DEVELOPED AREAS WITH
13 COVERING OR PAVEMENT THAT PREVENTS THE LAND'S NATURAL ABILITY TO
14 ABSORB AND INFILTRATE TYPICAL PRECIPITATION AND IRRIGATION EVENTS.
15 IMPERVIOUS AREAS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO. ROOF TOPS,
16 WALKWAYS, PATIOS, DRIVEWAYS, PARKING LOTS, IMPERVIOUS STORAGE
17 AREAS, IMPERVIOUS CONCRETE AND ASPHALT, AND ANY OTHER CONTINUOUS
18 WATERTIGHT PAVEMENT OR COVERING.

19
20 LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY: ANY ACTIVITY THAT RESULTS IN A CHANGE IN
21 THE EXISTING LAND SURFACE (BOTH VEGETATIVE AND NON-VEGETATIVE).
22 LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO CLEARING,
23 GRADING, EXCAVATION, DEMOLITION, INSTALLATION OF NEW OR IMPROVED
24 HAUL ROADS AND ACCESS ROADS, STAGING AREAS, STOCKPILING OF FILL
25 MATERIALS, AND BORROW AREAS. COMPACTION THAT IS ASSOCIATED WITH
26 STABILIZATION OF STRUCTURES AND ROAD CONSTRUCTION SHALL ALSO BE
27 CONSIDERED A LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY.

28
29 MINIMIZE: FOR PURPOSES OF IMPLEMENTING CONTROL MEASURES, TO
30 REDUCE AND/OR ELIMINATE TO THE EXTENT ACHIEVABLE USING CONTROL
31 MEASURES THAT ARE TECHNOLOGICALLY AVAILABLE AND ECONOMICALLY
32 PRACTICABLE AND ACHIEVABLE IN LIGHT OF BEST INDUSTRY PRACTICES.

33
34 MUNICIPAL OR MUNICIPALITY: REFERS TO A CITY, TOWN, COUNTY, DISTRICT,
35 ASSOCIATION, OR PUBLIC BODY CREATED OR UNDER STATE LAW AND HAVING
36 JURISDICTION OVER DISPOSAL OF SEWAGE, INDUSTRIAL WASTES, OR OTHER
37 WASTES.

38
39 MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4): A CONVEYANCE OR
40 SYSTEM OF CONVEYANCES (INCLUDING ROADS WITH DRAINAGE SYSTEMS,
41 MUNICIPAL STREETS, CATCH BASINS, CURBS, GUTTERS, DITCHES, MAN-MADE
42 CHANNELS OR STORM DRAINS), THAT IS OWNED OR OPERATED BY A

1 MUNICIPALITY, THAT IS DESIGNED OR USED FOR COLLECTING OR CONVEYING
2 STORMWATER, WHICH IS NOT A COMBINED SEWER, AND IS NOT PART OF A
3 PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS.

4
5 NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES): THE
6 NATIONWIDE PROGRAM IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
7 AGENCY TO REDUCE POLLUTANTS IN STORMWATER.

8
9 OPERATOR: THE PERSON OR ENTITY WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OVERALL
10 OPERATION OF THE FACILITY OR ACTIVITY FROM WHICH THE ASSOCIATED
11 DISCHARGE ORIGINATES.

12
13 PART OF A LARGER COMMON PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT OR SALE: A CONTIGUOUS
14 AREA WHERE MULTIPLE SEPARATE AND DISTINCT CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
15 MAY BE TAKING PLACE AT DIFFERENT TIMES ON DIFFERENT SCHEDULES.
16 “CONTIGUOUS” MEANS CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES LOCATED IN CLOSE
17 PROXIMITY TO EACH OTHER (WITHIN ¼ MILE).

18
19 PERSON: ANY INDIVIDUAL, ASSOCIATION, ORGANIZATION, PARTNERSHIP, FIRM,
20 CORPORATION, BUSINESS OR OTHER ENTITY RECOGNIZED BY LAW.

21
22 POLLUTANT: DREDGED SPOIL, DIRT, SLURRY, SOLID WASTE, INCINERATOR
23 RESIDUE, SEWAGE, SLUDGE, GARBAGE, TRASH, CHEMICAL WASTE, BIOLOGICAL
24 NUTRIENT, BIOLOGICAL MATERIAL, RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL, HEAT, WRECKED
25 OR DISCARDED EQUIPMENT, ROCK, SAND, OR ANY INDUSTRIAL, MUNICIPAL, OR
26 AGRICULTURAL WASTE AS DEFINED IN 5 CCR 1002-61.2(76).

27
28 POLLUTION: MAN-MADE OR MAN -INDUCED, OR NATURAL ALTERATION OF THE
29 PHYSICAL, CHEMICAL, BIOLOGICAL AND RADIOLOGICAL INTEGRITY OF WATER.
30 SEE CCR 1002-61.2 (77).

31
32 PREMISE(S): ANY BUILDING, LOT, PARCEL OF LAND, OR PORTION OF LAND
33 WHETHER IMPROVED OR UNIMPROVED INCLUDING ADJACENT SIDEWALKS AND
34 PARKING AREAS.

35
36 RECEIVING WATER: ANY CLASSIFIED STREAM SEGMENT (INCLUDING
37 TRIBUTARIES) IN THE STATE OF COLORADO INTO WHICH STORMWATER
38 DISCHARGES. THIS DEFINITION INCLUDES ALL WATER COURSES, EVEN IF THEY
39 ARE USUALLY DRY, SUCH AS BORROW DITCHES, ARROYOS, AND OTHER
40 UNNAMED WATERWAYS.

41
42 REDEVELOPMENT: INCLUDES A SITE THAT IS ALREADY SUBSTANTIALLY

1 DEVELOPED AND HAS 35% OR MORE OF EXISTING HARD SURFACE COVERAGE,
2 THE CREATION OR ADDITION OF HARD SURFACES, THE EXPANSION OF A
3 BUILDING FOOTPRINT OR ADDITION OR REPLACEMENT OF A STRUCTURE,
4 STRUCTURAL DEVELOPMENT INCLUDING CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION OR
5 EXPANSION OF A BUILDING OR OTHER STRUCTURE, REPLACEMENT OF HARD
6 SURFACE THAT IS NOT PART OF A ROUTINE MAINTENANCE ACTIVITY, AND
7 LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.

8
9 STATE: FOR PURPOSES OF THIS CHAPTER AND PROVISIONS, THE STATE OF
10 COLORADO.

11
12 STORM DRAINAGE FACILITY: A STRUCTURE, EQUIPMENT, AND USE OF LAND
13 WITH THE PURPOSE OF CONTAINING, CONTROLLING, OR TREATING
14 STORMWATER. THIS INCLUDES FEATURES THAT ARE MADE IN CONJUNCTION
15 WITH OR THAT ARE RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO THE CONSTRUCTION,
16 INSTALLATION OR USE OF THE ABOVE. FACILITIES INCLUDE, WITHOUT
17 LIMITATION, CURBS AND GUTTERS, CROSS PANS, PIPES, INLETS, CULVERTS,
18 CONDUITS, CHANNELS, BRIDGES, SWALES, DITCHES, CHANNELS, DETENTION
19 PONDS, EMERGENCY OVERFLOW FACILITIES, TEMPORARY STORMWATER BEST
20 MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, AND PERMANENT POST-CONSTRUCTION STORM
21 WATER QUALITY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES.

22
23 STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM: COLLECTIVELY ALL STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES
24 IN THE CITY.

25
26 STORM SEWER: A SEWER THAT IS INTENDED TO CARRY ONLY STORM OR
27 SURFACE WATER RUNOFF AND DRAINAGE.

28
29 STORMWATER: STORMWATER RUNOFF, SNOW MELT RUNOFF, AND SURFACE
30 RUNOFF AND DRAINAGE. SEE 5 CCR 1002-61.2 (103).

31
32 WATERCOURSE: ANY CHANNEL, NATURAL DEPRESSION, SLOUGH, ARTIFICIAL
33 CHANNEL, GULCH, ARROYO, STREAM, CREEK, POND, RESERVOIR OR LAKE,
34 INCLUDING MAJOR DRAINAGEWAYS IN WHICH STORMWATER AND FLOOD
35 WATER FLOWS, EITHER CONTINUOUSLY OR INTERMITTENTLY.

36
37 WATERS OF THE STATE: ANY AND ALL SURFACE WATERS AND SUBSURFACE
38 WATERS WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN OR FLOW IN OR THROUGH THE STATE OF
39 COLORADO, BUT DOES NOT INCLUDE WATERS IN SEWAGE SYSTEMS, WATERS IN
40 TREATMENT WORKS OF DISPOSAL SYSTEMS, WATERS IN POTABLE WATER
41 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS, AND ALL WATER WITHDRAWN FOR USE UNTIL USE
42 AND TREATMENT HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. THIS DEFINITION CAN INCLUDE

WATER COURSES THAT ARE USUALLY DRY.

7-7-3: ABBREVIATIONS:

THE FOLLOWING ABBREVIATIONS SHALL MEAN:

BMP	BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE
CCR	COLORADO CODE OF REGULATIONS
CDPS	COLORADO DISCHARGE PERMIT SYSTEM
CDPHE	STATE OF COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT
CRS	COLORADO REVISED STATUTES
EPA	ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
MS4	MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM
NPDES	NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM
O&M	OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
SWMP	STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
UDFCD	URBAN DRAINAGE AND FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
WQCD	WATER QUALITY CONTROL DIVISION OF THE CDPHE

7-7-4: PURPOSE, OBJECTIVE AND SCOPE:

- (A) STORMWATER RUNOFF FROM LAND DISTURBANCE CAN HAVE IMPACT UPON LOCAL AND REGIONAL WATER RESOURCES, DIMINISHING THE QUALITY OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY, QUALITY OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY, AND NATURAL RESOURCES OF THE CITY THROUGH FLOODING, POLLUTANT LOADING, DEGRADATION OF STREAM AND WETLAND HABITAT, AND IMPACTS TO RECREATIONAL AND WATER SUPPLY USES.
- (B) THE INTENT OF THIS ORDINANCE IS TO SET FORTH MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT THAT WILL DIMINISH THREATS TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY FROM STORMWATER AND POLLUTANTS, AND PROMOTE, PRESERVE, AND ENHANCE THE QUALITY OF RUNOFF WITHIN THE CITY.
- (C) NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGES TO THE MS4 ARE SUBJECT TO HIGHER LEVELS OF POLLUTANTS THAT, UPON ENTERING RECEIVING WATERS, MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT THE QUALITY OF RECEIVING WATERS. THE PURPOSE OF THIS ORDINANCE IS TO REGULATE SUCH NON-STORMWATER

DISCHARGES THAT WOULD HAVE AN ADVERSE AND POTENTIALLY
IRREVERSIBLE IMPACT ON WATER QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTALLY
SENSITIVE AREAS.

- (D) THIS SECTION IS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORIZATION AND
POLICIES CONTAINED IN THE COLORADO WATER QUALITY CONTROL ACT¹
AND COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY THE CDPHE AND THE
MS4 PERMIT, ISSUED TO THE CITY OF LITTLETON THROUGH THE CDPS.

7-7-25: APPLICABILITY:

~~This chapter and its provisions shall apply to all applications for subdivisions, subdivision
exemptions, planned development districts, planned development overlays and site plans, or
manmade construction activities that result in land disturbance of equal to or greater than one
acre, or less than one acre of total land area that is part of a larger common plan of development
or sale, if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one acre, except
agricultural activities. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)~~

- (A) THIS CHAPTER AND ITS PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO ALL WATER
ENTERING THE MS4 GENERATED ON ANY DEVELOPED OR UNDEVELOPED
LANDS WITHIN THE INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY.

- (B) THIS CHAPTER AND ITS PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO APPLICATIONS FOR
DEVELOPMENT, REDEVELOPMENT, AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION IN THE
CITY.

- (C) PROPOSED ACTIVITIES THAT RESULT IN LAND DISTURBANCE OF EQUAL
TO OR GREATER THAN ONE ACRE, OR LESS THAN ONE ACRE OF TOTAL
LAND AREA THAT IS PART OF A LARGER COMMON PLAN OF
DEVELOPMENT OR SALE IF THE LARGER COMMON PLAN WILL
ULTIMATELY DISTURB EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN ONE ACRE, EXCEPT
AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES, SHALL ALSO BE SUBJECT TO A SEPARATE
PERMIT FROM THE CDPHE.

FOOTNOTE 1: CRS 25-8-101 ET SEQ.

7-7-36: STANDARDS AND CRITERIA:

- (BA) The MOST CURRENT AND AMENDED city's Storm Drainage Design and Technical
Criteria Manual (hereinafter in this chapter referred to as the "city's criteria") is HEREBY
ADOPTED BY REFERENCE ~~shall be as regulations prepared and adopted by the director~~
which shall provide for storm drainage policies, plan review procedures, and ~~shall also be~~

used as the basis for design criteria for storm water runoff ~~transportation~~ conveyance, detention and retention facilities, ~~public information, public involvement,~~ illicit discharge controls, temporary construction ~~erosion control~~ best management practices, permanent structural and nonstructural post-construction storm water quality ~~enhancement~~ best management practices, and good housekeeping practices. Further, the city's criteria shall provide for storm water quality enhancement facilities or measures for all waters. The city's criteria shall be drafted so as to ensure that the public will be afforded reasonable protection from polluted storm waters, floods and other surface waters.

(AB) The Urban Drainage and Flood Control District's (UDFCD) current amended edition of the "Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual", published by and available through the UDFCD, is hereby adopted by reference as regulations which may be applied by the ~~director of public services or his designee~~ (hereafter "the director") for purposes of design criteria for storm water runoff conveyance ~~transportation~~, detention and retention facilities, and temporary and permanent storm water quality management and ~~erosion control~~.

(C) When there exists a conflict between the "Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual" and the city's criteria, the city's criteria shall control. The "Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual" shall ~~only~~ be used when the city's criteria does not address the subject ~~or land area in issue~~ question. The city's criteria shall provide that flow patterns and runoff rates of flow are to be controlled in such a manner so as to minimize the risk of current and future property damage AND POLLUTION. Said regulations shall, in addition, be based upon the criteria specified in section ~~7-7-4~~ 7-7-6 of this chapter and may be amended ~~from time to time~~ by the director to best accomplish the goal of reasonable public protection from surface runoff. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

7-7-4.7: AUTHORITY OF THE DIRECTOR:

The ~~director or his designee~~ shall have the authority to designate which of the above mentioned criteria from the above mentioned manuals shall be met by the property owner for the required amount of surface water on site detention or retention, temporary construction ~~erosion control~~ best management practices, permanent structural and nonstructural ~~postconstruction~~ storm water quality enhancement best management practices. The director's choice of criteria shall depend upon a consideration of all factors which afford downslope, upslope or adjacent structures, land or persons reasonable protection from floods or other surface waters, including, but not limited to:

(A) The runoff capacity of the specific drainage basin(s) involved;

(B) The topography of the site and adjacent and downslope properties;

(C) The distance of the site to any major watercourse or the thalweg of any drainage basin;

~~(D) The potential for surface water damage to downslope properties or anticipated future development;~~

~~(E) Whether the cost of compliance will substantially exceed the benefit realized or anticipated;~~

~~(F) The potential erosivity of the site;~~

~~(G) The potential to implement permanent structural or nonstructural postconstruction best management practices to remove pollutants from storm water; and~~

(A) THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE THIS CHAPTER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE POWER TO PROMULGATE ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS AND GUIDANCE INTERPRETING THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER.

(B) THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL ENFORCE THE PROTECTION OF SURFACE WATERS FROM ILLICIT DISCHARGES.

(C) THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL REQUIRE A STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (SWMP) FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY AND CONSTRUCTION SITES. THE SWMP SHALL INCLUDE TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND CONTROL MEASURES FOR WATER QUALITY PROTECTION AND TRASH REMOVAL, FROM INITIAL DISTURBANCE UNTIL FINAL STABILIZATION. THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL ENFORCE THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SWMP, WHICH MAY REQUIRE CHANGES DURING CONSTRUCTION, THE MAINTENANCE OF BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND CONTROL MEASURES, OR ANY MODIFICATIONS DEEMED NECESSARY.

(D) THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL REQUIRE AND ENFORCE THE IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PERMANENT, POST-CONSTRUCTION WATER QUALITY CONTROL MEASURES FOR APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT SITES. DURING THE DESIGN PHASE, THE DIRECTOR AND AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE SHALL REQUIRE AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) PLAN FOR PERMANENT POST-CONSTRUCTION CONTROL MEASURES TO ENSURE ADEQUATE MAINTENANCE OF SUCH FACILITIES BY CURRENT AND FUTURE LANDOWNERS AND PROPERTY MANAGERS INTO PERPETUITY.

~~(H-E)~~ Such other requirements and further criteria as may be relevant in achieving the goal of reasonable public protection from flooding and pollution of surface waters. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

~~7-7-6: LANDS EXEMPTED FROM PLATTING:~~

~~Land within a federally designated 100-year floodplain as specified in section 10-6-2 of the Littleton zoning regulations, or land within a city urban drainage and flood control district designated 100-year floodplain as specified by the district's flood hazard area delineation reports or its major drainageway master plans, or land within any other 100-year floodplain shall not be platted for occupancy nor shall a building or remodeling permit for new construction or substantial improvement be issued unless the applicant obtains a special exception permit or, when necessary, a floodplain variance, in conformance with the criteria and procedures as designated in title 10 of this code. For purposes of this section, "100-year floodplain" is hereby defined as an "area of special flood hazard" as same is defined in section 10-6-2 of this code. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)~~

~~7-7-7: SITE RUNOFF RATE:~~

~~The permitted site runoff rate from multi frequency storms shall be as specified by the director based upon the "Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual" or the city's criteria. Historic undeveloped, developed and anticipated runoff rates in the specific drainage basin(s) involved shall be used in determining the criteria as specified in the city's criteria and the facilities that shall be constructed in order to satisfy the requirements of this chapter. The 100-year frequency and either the 5- or 10-year frequency storm, plus the water quality capture volume or release rate, as specified in the "Urban Storm Drainage Criteria Manual", as applicable, shall be the multi-frequency storms initially considered by the director for the purpose of design and building construction requirements. Other combinations of storm frequencies not shown on specific drainage basin map(s), which shall be included in the city's criteria may be required to be detained or retained by the director when, in the discretion of the director after considering the criteria referenced in section 7-7-4 of this chapter, the detention or retention of greater amounts of storm water runoff is required. When the required amounts of storm water detention or retention cannot be met by on site detention or retention storage or other devices, suitable channelization and/or outfall storm sewer facilities leading to a suitable discharge point shall be required and shall be provided by the owner. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)~~

~~7-7-8: SEWERS, FACILITIES INSTALLED; LAND GRADED:~~

~~All required storm sewers and drainage facilities, including, but not limited to: gutters, cross pans, catch basins, inlets, detention ponds, retention ponds, emergency overflow facilities, bridges, overflows, low flow channels and culverts, temporary construction erosion control best management practices, permanent structural post construction storm water quality enhancement best management practices, shall be installed, or~~

~~7-7-13 8: ILLICIT DISCHARGES:~~

1 ~~(A) For the purposes of this section, "stormwater" shall be defined as rainwater runoff, snowmelt~~
2 ~~runoff, and surface runoff and drainage. "Illicit discharges" shall be defined as any discharge~~
3 ~~to a storm drainage facility (as defined in section 7-8-2 of this title) that is not composed~~
4 ~~entirely of stormwater, excluding discharges authorized by a permit issued by the Colorado~~
5 ~~department of public health and environment or the national pollutant discharge elimination~~
6 ~~system; and excluding discharges authorized by low risk policy guidance documents as~~
7 ~~currently issued by the Colorado department of public health and environment in place of a~~
8 ~~permit, provided such discharge is in conformance of all requirements of said guidance; and~~
9 ~~excluding emergency firefighting activities.~~

10 ~~(BA) It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge or cause to be discharged or spilled to a~~
11 ~~storm drainage facility any illicit discharge. ILLICIT DISCHARGES TO THE CITY~~
12 ~~STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM AND MS4 ARE PROHIBITED.~~

13 ~~(CB) Unless determined by the city director to be potential sources of polluting materials or~~
14 ~~cause a hazard to the public, the following categories of non-stormwater may be discharged~~
15 ~~to storm drainage facilities system:~~

16 (1) landscape irrigation and lawn watering;
17

18 (2) diverted stream flows; irrigation return flow; rising groundwaters; uncontaminated
19 groundwater infiltration; uncontaminated pumped groundwater; springs; flows from
20 riparian habitats and wetlands;
21

22 (3) water line flushing IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CDPHE LOW RISK POLICY;
23 discharges from potable water sources IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CDPHE
24 LOW RISK POLICY PROVIDED THE WATER IS NOT USED IN ANY
25 ADDITIONAL PROCESS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WASHING,
26 HEAT EXCHANGE, MANUFACTURING, HYDROSTATIC TESTING OF
27 PIPELINES NOT ASSOCIATED WITH TREATED WATER DISTRIBUTION
28 SYSTEMS;
29

30 (4) foundation drains;
31

32 (5) air conditioning condensation;
33

34 (6) UNCONTAMINATED water from crawl space pumps;
35

36 (7) footing drains;
37

38 (8) individual residential car washing;
39

(9) dechlorinated swimming pool discharges IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CDPHE LOW RISK POLICY;

(10) water incidental to street sweeping operations, including sidewalks and medians, and that is not associated with construction;

(11) DYE TESTING IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS;

(12) STORMWATER RUNOFF WITH INCIDENTAL POLLUTANTS;

(13) DISCHARGES RESULTING FROM EMERGENCY FIREFIGHTING ACTIVITIES;

(14) DISCHARGES AUTHORIZED BY ANOTHER CDPS OR NPDES PERMIT;

(15) DISCHARGES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CDPHE LOW RISK POLICY GUIDANCE DOCUMENTS OR OTHER POLICY AND GUIDANCE DOCUMENTS OF THE STATE.

(C) If the non-stormwater discharge(s) are determined by the ~~city~~ director to be POTENTIAL sources of pollutant materials or ~~cause a~~ hazard to the public, the owner must request approval of the director to discharge to a storm drainage facility and may be required to submit engineering plans of facilities or results of laboratory analysis of ~~any proposed non-stormwater material~~ THE DISCHARGE. SUBMITTALS SHALL INCLUDE A LIST OF PROPOSED DISCHARGES THAT MEET ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR. THE PROPOSED DISCHARGE(S) ARE SUBJECT TO PUBLIC NOTICE AND APPROVAL BY THE STATE:

(1) DISCHARGES WITH PROPER MANAGEMENT ARE NOT EXPECTED TO CONTAIN POLLUTANTS IN CONCENTRATIONS THAT ARE TOXIC OR IN CONCENTRATIONS THAT WOULD CAUSE OR CONTRIBUTE TO A VIOLATION OF DEFINED WATER QUALITY STANDARD;

(2) THE DISCHARGES ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR COVERAGE UNDER A CDPS OR NPDES GENERAL PERMIT AND PROHIBITING THE DISCHARGE WOULD RESULT IN CHANGES TO EXISTING PRACTICES FOR OWNER OR OPERATOR THAT ARE DETERMINED BY THE DIRECTOR TO BE IMPRACTICABLE.

(D) ILLICIT CONNECTIONS TO THE CITY STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM ARE PROHIBITED. NO PERSON SHALL CONSTRUCT, USE, MAINTAIN, OR CONTINUE THE EXISTENCE OF AN ILLICIT CONNECTION TO THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

1 ILLICIT CONNECTIONS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, ANY CONVEYANCES
2 WHICH ALLOW ANY NON-STORMWATER DISCHARGE TO ENTER THE STORM
3 DRAINAGE SYSTEM, ANY CONNECTIONS TO THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM
4 FROM INDOOR DRAINS AND SINKS OR SEWAGE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SAID
5 DRAIN OR CONNECTION HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY ALLOWED, PERMITTED, OR
6 APPROVED, OR ANY DRAIN OR CONVEYANCE CONNECTED FROM A
7 COMMERCIAL OR INDUSTRIAL LAND USE TO THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM
8 WHICH HAS NOT BEEN DOCUMENTED IN PLANS, MAPS, OR EQUIVALENT
9 RECORDS AND PERMITTED BY THE CITY.

10
11 (E) POTENTIAL ILLICIT DISCHARGES

12
13 (1) NO PERSON SHALL DUMP OR DEPOSIT ANY NON-STORMWATER ONTO PUBLIC
14 OR PRIVATE PREMISES WHEN SUCH DUMPING OR DEPOSIT HAS POTENTIAL
15 TO RESULT IN AN ILLICIT DISCHARGE, UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY THE
16 DIRECTOR OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE. THE DIRECTOR OR DESIGNEE SHALL
17 HAVE AUTHORITY TO DETERMINE WHAT CONSTITUTES A POTENTIAL ILLICIT
18 DISCHARGE.

19
20 (2) WATERCOURSES AND STORM SEWERS PASSING THROUGH PROPERTIES
21 SHALL BE KEPT AND MAINTAINED BY THE PROPERTY OWNER TO BE
22 REASONABLY FREE OF TRASH, DEBRIS, OTHER POLLUTANTS OR OBSTACLES
23 THAT COULD POTENTIALLY POLLUTE OR CONTAMINATE THE FLOW OF
24 WATER THROUGH THE WATER COURSE OR SEWER.

25
26 (3) THE OWNER OF ANY PAVED PARKING LOT, STREET OR DRIVE SHALL CLEAN
27 THE PAVEMENT AS NECESSARY TO MINIMIZE THE BUILDUP AND DISCHARGE
28 OF POLLUTANTS TO THE MS4. PAVEMENT SHALL BE CLEANED BY DRY
29 SWEEPING OR WET VACUUM SWEEPING, WITH COLLECTION AND TREATMENT
30 OF THE WASH WATER.

31
32 (4) FUEL AND CHEMICAL RESIDUE OR OTHER TYPES OF POTENTIALLY
33 HAZARDOUS OR HARMFUL MATERIALS SHALL BE REMOVED AND PROPERLY
34 DISPOSED.

35
36 (5) IRRIGATION WATER RUNOFF SHALL BE MINIMIZED TO THE MAXIMUM
37 EXTENT POSSIBLE.

38
39 (6) MOBILE WASHING OPERATIONS SHALL NOT DISCHARGE TO THE STORM
40 DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

41
42 (7) ANY LEAK OR SPILL RELATED TO EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE IN

1 AN OUTDOOR UNCOVERED AREA MUST BE CONTAINED TO PREVENT
2 POTENTIAL RELEASE OF POLLUTANTS.

3
4 (F) Nothing contained herein shall be construed to relieve any person discharging into storm
5 drainage facilities from any liability for damage caused by the volume or quality of water
6 discharged. (Ord. 28, Series of 2012)

7
8 (G) NOTWITHSTANDING OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF LAW, ANY PERSON WHO
9 OWNS, OCCUPIES, OR IS OTHERWISE RESPONSIBLE FOR A PREMISES, OR
10 RESPONSIBLE FOR EMERGENCY RESPONSE FOR SUCH PREMISES, WHERE A
11 KNOWN OR SUSPECTED RELEASE OF AN ILLICIT DISCHARGE INTO THE
12 STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM HAS OCCURRED, SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY
13 STEPS TO ENSURE THE DISCOVERY, CESSATION, CONTAINMENT, AND
14 CLEANUP OF SUCH A RELEASE.

15
16 IN THE EVENT OF A POTENTIAL RELEASE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS,
17 THE CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFIED OF
18 THE OCCURRENCE VIA EMERGENCY DISPATCH SERVICES, WITH
19 ADDITIONAL NOTIFICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.
20 RELEASES OF NON-HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MUST BE REPORTED TO THE
21 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS IMMEDIATELY.

22 7-7-59: COMPLIANCE REQUIRED; ISSUANCE OF PERMIT, CERTIFICATE:

23
24 (A) No ~~Neither a building permit~~ PERMITS for new construction activity,
25 REDEVELOPMENT, GRADING, nor a ~~or "substantial improvement" (as defined in section 10-~~
26 ~~6-2 of this code)~~ nor a certificate of occupancy shall be issued by the city until and unless the
27 owner of the site complies with the STORM DRAINAGE design and construction requirements
28 as specified by the director OUTLINED IN 7-7-6. ~~This prohibition against the issuance of~~
29 ~~building permits and certificates of occupancy may be waived by the director when he receives~~
30 ~~proper assurances from the property owner;~~

31
32 (B) Permit issuance ~~which shall include, but not be limited to, a written compliance schedule and~~
33 ~~the posting of a bond, letter of credit, or cash escrow for one hundred twenty five percent (125%)~~
34 ~~of the estimated cost OF ALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, STORMWATER~~
35 ~~INFRASTRUCTURE, AND TEMPORARY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND~~
36 ~~FINAL VEGETATION, to ensure that the construction requirements will subsequently be met.~~
37 (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

38
39 (C) PERMITS SHALL NOT BE TERMINATED OR BOND RELEASED UNTIL
40 INSPECTION AND APPROVAL BY THE DIRECTOR OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE

1 THAT FINAL STABILIZATION OF THE SITE HAS BEEN ACHIEVED. STATE PERMITS
2 ISSUED BY WQCD FOR CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER SHALL ALSO NOT BE
3 TERMINATED UNTIL SUCH CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN MET. PRESENCE OF WEEDS
4 IS NOT INCLUDED IN THE DETERMINATION OF THE AMOUNT OF VEGETATIVE
5 COVER.
6

7 (D) ALL STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES AS DEFINED IN 7-7-2, SHALL BE
8 INSTALLED, OR if found to be damaged during construction shall be replaced by the owner
9 and the land graded for adequate drainage as shown on plans submitted by the owner and
10 approved by THE DIRECTOR ~~city's engineering/utilities division~~. Prior to any release by the
11 city of any bond, all such completed facilities shall be approved for compliance with said plans
12 by the ~~engineering/utilities division~~ DIRECTOR AFTER CLEANING OF STORM SEWERS
13 and receipt of AS-BUILT certification from a registered Colorado professional engineer and
14 professional land surveyor. All costs ASSOCIATED WITH FINAL APPROVAL of any storm
15 sewer or drainage facilities, best management practices or measures shall be borne by the owner.
16 (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)
17

18 7-7-910: ~~PERFORMANCE STANDARDS~~; MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES;
19 **MODIFICATIONS OF FACILITIES:**
20

21 (A) It shall be unlawful for the PROPERTY OR FACILITY owner OR THEIR DESIGNEE,
22 OR RESIDENT, to inadequately repair or maintain all required stormwater drainage
23 facilities AND POST CONSTRUCTION PERMANENT WATER QUALITY CONTROL
24 MEASURES. All stormwater drainage facilities shall be maintained so as to perform the
25 specific functions for which they were designed. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)
26

27 (B) The director shall require an Operations and Maintenance plan be prepared at the time of
28 design or construction for any permanent storm drainage facility, and require that the
29 terms of the Operations and Maintenance plan are followed.
30

31 (C) In the case of a post-construction water quality control measure to be constructed within
32 the city limits and operated by another governmental entity, or in the case of multiple or
33 overlapping MS4 jurisdictions, an agreement with the city describing maintenance
34 procedures and maintenance responsibility shall be required, to ensure that the facility is
35 designed, constructed and adequately maintained in perpetuity.
36

37 (D) It shall be unlawful for any PROPERTY OR FACILITY owner OR THEIR DESIGNEE,
38 to modify, remove or otherwise change or to cause the modification, removal or changing
39 of any required stormwater drainage facility, BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE OR
40 APPURTENANCE without first having obtained the written approval of the director. The
41 director shall not grant approval of any requested modification, removal or change to any
42 drainage facility, BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE OR APPURTENANCE when said

modification, removal or change would ~~thwart~~ NOT MEET this chapter's goal of reasonable public protection from floods or other surface waters, or protection of stormwater from pollutants. The owner may be required to submit engineering plans and specifications for any requested modification, removal, or other change if required by the director when the anticipated impact, magnitude or complexity of the proposed change, in the discretion of the director, warrants detailed evaluation. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

~~7-7-10: CHANGE, MOVING OF FACILITY; APPROVAL REQUIRED:~~

~~7-7-11: DRAINAGE FACILITY REPORT: INSPECTION; RIGHT OF ENTRY:~~

~~Upon the request of the director, the owner shall provide the director with a status report, or allow the director or his/her designee reasonable access to perform an inspection on the present condition of all drainage facilities located on the owner's real property. Whenever it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce any provisions of this chapter, or whenever the director or his/her designee believes that there exists in any premises subject to this chapter any condition or violation with regard to maintenance and operation of required stormwater drainage facilities, the director or his/her designee may enter such premises to inspect the same provided that he or she shall first present proper credentials and request and be granted entry, or otherwise have grounds for a search warrant as may be authorized by law. If requested entry be refused, the director or his/her designee shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law to secure entry. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)~~

(A) THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT CONSTITUTES RIGHT OF ENTRY FOR THE DIRECTOR OR ITS CONTRACTOR, TO ENTER A CONSTRUCTION SITE FOR PURPOSES OF INSPECTION OF THE INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF TEMPORARY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES OR CONSTRUCTION OF PERMANENT STORM WATER FACILITIES FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER, OR TO PERFORM MAINTENANCE OF EITHER TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES.

(B) THE DIRECTOR HAS RIGHT OF ENTRY TO PROPERTY AS NECESSARY TO INSPECT THE PRESENT CONDITION OF ALL PERMANENT STORM WATER FACILITIES FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER, OR TO PERFORM MAINTENANCE OF THE SAME. IF REQUESTED ENTRY BE REFUSED, THE DIRECTOR OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE SHALL HAVE RECOURSE TO EVERY REMEDY PROVIDED BY LAW TO SECURE ENTRY. Upon request of the director, the owner shall provide the director with a status report OF THE PRESENT CONDITION OF ALL PERMANENT STORM WATER FACILITIES ON THE PROPERTY.

(C) FOR SUSPECTED ILLICIT DISCHARGES ON PRIVATE PROPERTY, THE DIRECTOR SHALL ENTER AND INSPECT PROPERTIES AS OFTEN AS MAY BE

1 NECESSARY TO DETERMINE COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER.

2
3 (D) IF SECURITY MEASURES ARE IN FORCE REQUIRING PROPER IDENTIFICATION
4 AND CLEARANCE BEFORE ENTRY ONTO A PREMISES, THE NECESSARY
5 ARRANGEMENTS SHALL BE MADE TO ALLOW ACCESS. IF ANY PERSON
6 REFUSES OR RESTRICTS ENTRY AND FREE ACCESS TO ANY PART OF A
7 PREMISES, OR REFUSES INSPECTION OR OTHER ACTION DEEMED NECESSARY
8 FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER, THE DIRECTOR SHALL SEEK FROM
9 THE MUNICIPAL COURT A SEARCH WARRANT AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR
10 TO ENTER THE PREMISES. THE COURT SHALL HAVE FULL POWER,
11 JURISDICTION AND AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE ALL ORDERS ISSUED UNDER
12 THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER. THE COURT MAY TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE
13 OF THIS ORDINANCE CHAPTER. THE APPLICATION SHALL INCLUDE A SWORN
14 OR AFFIRMED AFFIDAVIT STATING THE FACTUAL BASIS FOR SUCH
15 WARRANT, EVIDENCE THAT THE OWNER OR RESPONSIBLE PARTY AT THE
16 PREMISES HAS RECEIVED A NOTICE OF VIOLATION, OR THAT REASONABLE
17 EFFORTS TO SERVE THE NOTICE HAVE BEEN MADE TO NO AVAIL, AND THAT
18 OWNER OR RESPONSIBLE PARTY HAS FAILED TO ABATE THE CONDITION
19 WITHIN A REASONABLE PRESCRIBED PERIOD AND A GENERAL DESCRIPTION
20 OF THE LOCATION OF THE PREMISES THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THE
21 WARRANT.

22
23 (E) THE DIRECTOR SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO SET UP ON ANY PROPERTY SUCH
24 DEVICES AS NECESSARY TO CONDUCT MONITORING AND/OR SAMPLING OF
25 THE DISCHARGE FROM THE PROPERTY. THE DIRECTOR HAS THE RIGHT TO
26 REQUIRE THE DISCHARGER TO INSTALL MONITORING EQUIPMENT AS
27 NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT. THE
28 MONITORING EQUIPMENT SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES IN A SAFE
29 AND PROPER OPERATING CONDITION BY THE DISCHARGER AT ITS OWN
30 EXPENSE. ALL DEVICES USED TO MEASURE STORM WATER FLOW AND
31 QUALITY SHALL BE CALIBRATED TO ENSURE THEIR ACCURACY.

32
33 (F) ANY TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT OBSTRUCTION TO SAFE AND EASY ACCESS
34 TO THE FACILITY TO BE INSPECTED OR SAMPLED SHALL BE PROMPTLY
35 REMOVED BY THE OPERATOR AT THE WRITTEN OR VERBAL REQUEST OF THE
36 CITY AND SHALL NOT BE REPLACED. THE COSTS OF CLEARING SUCH ACCESS
37 SHALL BE BORNE BY THE OPERATOR.

38
39 ~~7-7-12: REMEDIES:~~

40
41 ~~In addition to those penalties specified in section 1-4-1 of this code, the city may institute any~~
42 ~~appropriate legal action or proceedings for injunctive or other relief to compel compliance with~~

~~the requirements of this chapter. The imposition of any penalty pursuant to section 1-4-1 of this code shall not preclude any proceeding to require compliance with the provisions of this chapter or with administrative regulations, orders and determinations made hereunder. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)~~

7-7-12 : VIOLATIONS; ENFORCEMENT:

(A) VIOLATION. IT IS UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON TO VIOLATE ANY PROVISION, OR FAIL TO COMPLY WITH ANY OF THE REQUIREMENTS, OF THIS CHAPTER. ANY PERSON WHO VIOLATES ANY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE GUILTY OF A MISDEMEANOR. NOTWITHSTANDING THE IMPOSITION OF A CRIMINAL PENALTY SUCH PERSON WHO VIOLATES ANY PROVISION OF THIS CHAPTER MAY ALSO BE SUBJECT TO ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS PROVIDED IN THIS CHAPTER.

(B) WHEN A VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER ARE FOUND, THE CITY WILL NOTIFY THE PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR ANY OTHER RESPONSIBLE PERSON OF THE VIOLATION AND REQUIRED COMPLIANCE BY NOTICE WHICH MAY BE VERBAL OR WRITTEN, HAND DELIVERED, BY ELECTRONIC MAIL, OR FIRST CLASS U.S. MAIL OR POSTING UPON THE PROPERTY. OR IN THE CASE OF AN EMERGENCY ABATEMENT, NOTIFICATION MAY BE VIA TELEPHONE. THE NOTICE MAY REQUIRE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

(1) STOP WORK ORDER,

(2) IMMEDIATE ELIMINATION OF ILLICIT DISCHARGES OR CONNECTIONS,

(3) IMMEDIATE CEASE AND DESIST OF VIOLATING DISCHARGES, PRACTICES OR OPERATIONS,

(4) ABATEMENT OR REMEDIATION OF POLLUTION OR CONTAMINATION, AND RESTORATION OF AFFECTED PROPERTY,

(5) IMPLEMENTATION OF SOURCE CONTROL OR TREATMENT BMPS, OR MAINTENANCE THEREOF,

(6) IMPLEMENTATION OF MONITORING, ANALYSES, AND REPORTING,

(7) DEADLINE FOR COMPLIANCE,

(8) PAYMENT OF A CIVIL PENALTY AND ADMINISTRATIVE OR REMEDIATION FEES, IF APPLICABLE.

1 (C) IN THE EVENT A VIOLATOR FAILS TO TAKE REMEDIAL MEASURES SET FORTH
2 IN THE NOTICE, OR OTHERWISE FAILS TO MITIGATE THE VIOLATION WITHIN
3 THE TIME FRAME SPECIFIED, THE CITY WILL ISSUE A WRITTEN SECOND
4 NOTICE. FAILURE TO COMPLY A SECOND TIME WILL RESULT IN IMPOSITION
5 OF A CIVIL PENALTY OF NOT LESS THAN FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS NOR MORE
6 THAN TWO THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS OR DEPENDING ON
7 SEVERITY OF THE VIOLATION, THE CITY WILL IMPLEMENT PROCEDURES IN
8 SECTION 7-7-12 (E), AND MAY PERFORM THE WORK NEEDED TO REMEDY THE
9 VIOLATION AND COMPLY WITH THIS CHAPTER. A STATEMENT FOR COSTS
10 INCURRED BY THE CITY WILL BE PREPARED WITH THE WHOLE COSTS PLUS
11 TWENTY FIVE PERCENT (25%) ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS SHALL BE MAILED TO
12 THE PROPERTY OWNER WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS THAT SAID STATEMENT
13 WILL BE PAID IN FULL PLUS FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) INCIDENTAL COSTS
14 WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF SAID MAILING DATE.

15
16 (D) In addition to a penalty, the city may institute any appropriate legal action or proceedings for
17 injunctive or other relief to compel compliance with the requirements of this chapter. The
18 imposition of any penalty pursuant to section 1-4-1 of this code shall not preclude any
19 proceeding to require compliance with the provisions of this chapter or with administrative
20 regulations, orders and determinations made hereunder. (Ord. 30, Series of 2005)

21 (E) SHOULD CONDITIONS WARRANT, OR AN UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE HAS
22 OCCURRED OR IS IMMINENT, AND UPON FAILURE OF THE PROPERTY OWNER
23 OR OTHER RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO IMMEDIATELY ABATE OR MITIGATE THE
24 VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER AFTER FIRST NOTIFICATION, THE CITY MAY
25 PERFORM THE WORK NEEDED TO COMPLY WITH THIS CHAPTER, WITH
26 PROVISIONS AS STATED IN 7-7-12(C) ABOVE. IF NOT PAID WITHIN 30 DAYS,
27 THE COSTS SHALL BE A LIEN AGAINST THE PREMISES THAT WERE THE
28 SUBJECT OF THE ABATEMENT UNTIL PAID AND SHALL HAVE PRIORITY BASED
29 UPON THE LIEN'S DATE OF RECORDING.

30 (F) IN THE EVENT OF CHRONIC VIOLATIONS OR RECALCITRANT BEHAVIOR BY A
31 PROPERTY OWNER OR RESPONSIBLE PERSON, THE DIRECTOR MAY ESCALATE
32 ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES FROM 7-7-12(A) DIRECTLY TO (D). IN
33 DETERMINING THIS ACTION, THE DIRECTOR SHALL CONSIDER WHETHER
34 THERE IS EVIDENCE INDICATING THAT THE VIOLATOR HAS ENGAGED IN A
35 PATTERN OF NEGLECT OR DISREGARD WITH RESPECT TO THE
36 REQUIREMENTS OF THIS CHAPTER, INCLUDING REPEATED VIOLATIONS
37 RESULTING IN SECOND NOTICES WITHIN A SIX (6) MONTH PERIOD.

38 (G) REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE. THE REMEDIES LISTED IN THIS CHAPTER ARE
39 NOT EXCLUSIVE OF EACH OTHER OR OF ANY OTHER REMEDIES AVAILABLE

1 UNDER ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL LAW, AND IT IS WITHIN THE
2 DISCRETION OF THE AUTHORIZED ENFORCEMENT AGENCY TO SEEK
3 CUMULATIVE REMEDIES.

4 **7-7-13: APPEALS**

5 PROPERTY OWNERS OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES, PERMIT APPLICANTS, OR
6 OTHERWISE RESPONSIBLE PARTIES MAY APPEAL TO HEARING OFFICER
7 APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, A DECISION OR ACTION BY THE DIRECTOR
8 REGARDING THE ENFORCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THIS CHAPTER. SUCH
9 APPEAL MUST BE MADE IN WRITING TO THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
10 PUBLIC WORKS WITHIN TEN (10) CALENDAR DAYS OF SAID DECISION OR
11 ACTION. THE APPEAL SHALL BE FORWARDED TO THE HEARING OFFICER, WHO
12 SHALL SCHEDULE A HEARING TO REVIEW AND DECIDE ON THE CASE, WITHIN
13 THE CONFINES OF APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND MUNICIPAL CODE.

14 **7-7-14: SEVERABILITY**

15 THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE ARE HEREBY DECLARED TO BE
16 SEVERABLE. IF ANY PROVISION, CLAUSE, SENTENCE OR PARAGRAPH OF THIS
17 ORDINANCE OR THE APPLICATION THEREOF TO ANY PERSON OR
18 CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL BE HELD INVALID, SUCH INVALIDITY SHALL NOT
19 AFFECT THE OTHER PROVISIONS OR APPLICATIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE.

20 **Section 2:** Title 7, Chapter 8, is amended to read as follows:

21
22 Section 3: (E) is amended to read as follows:

23
24 (E) After adoption of any major drainageway master plan, the director of public services shall
25 retain a copy on file for public inspection during normal business hours. Further, major
26 drainageway master plans shall become part of the city's storm drainage design and technical
27 criteria manual as same is established in section ~~7-7-3~~ 7-7-6 of this title.
28

29 Section 4 (A) is amended to read as follows:

30
31 (A) No developer of land in the City shall fail to provide on his property all facilities so as to
32 comply with any of the requirements or specifications of any applicable major drainageway
33 master plan and the requirements as specified by the City's Director of Public ~~Services~~ WORKS
34 pursuant to ~~Section 7-7-7 of this Title~~. THE CITY'S STORM DRAINAGE DESIGN
35 CRITERIA, AS REFERENCES IN 7-7-6 OF THIS TITLE.
36

37 Section 4 (C) is amended to read as follows:

(C) The City Manager may waive any or all of the requirements of this Section for particular developments or impose additional requirements, if such waivers or additional requirements are reasonably necessary due to the existence of such conditions as specified in ~~Section 7-7-4 of this Title.~~ THE CITY'S STORM DRAINAGE DESIGN CRITERIA, AS REFERENCED IN 7-7-6 OF THIS TITLE.

Section 3: Severability. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, including each part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be declared invalid.

Section 4: Repealer. All ordinances or resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed, provided that this repealer shall not repeal the repealer clauses of such ordinance nor revive any ordinance thereby.

INTRODUCED AS A BILL at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Littleton on the 2nd day of April, 2019, passed on first reading by a vote of 7 FOR and 0 AGAINST; and ordered published by posting at Littleton Center, Bemis Library, the Municipal Courthouse and on the City of Littleton Website.

PUBLIC HEARING on the Ordinance to take place on the 16th day of April, 2019, in the Council Chambers, Littleton Center, 2255 West Berry Avenue, Littleton, Colorado, at the hour of 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as it may be heard.

PASSED on second and final reading, following public hearing, by a vote of ____ FOR and ____ AGAINST on the 16th day of April 2019 and ordered published by posting at Littleton Center, Bemis Library, the Municipal Courthouse and on the City of Littleton Website.

1 ATTEST:

2 _____
3 Wendy Heffner
4 CITY CLERK

Debbie Brinkman
MAYOR

5
6 APPROVED AS TO FORM:
7 _____
8 _____
9 CITY ATTORNEY